
Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
Monday, Dec 10, 2012, 7:00 – 8:30 pm 

Riverside Meeting Room, Baker County Public Library 
2400 Resort St, Baker City 
Gary Dielman, President 

 

PS / 2012-12-09 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon. 

 

7:00 I. CALL TO ORDER Dielman 

 II. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) 
Related documents (1):  Agenda. 

Dielman 

 III. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest Dielman 

 IV. Approval of minutes from previous Board Meeting (ACTION) 
Related documents (1):  Board Meeting Minutes 11/12/12. 

Dielman 

 V. Open forum for general public comments & communications 
In the interests of time and to allow as many members of the public an opportunity to 
speak, the board asks guests to limit remarks to five (5) minutes if speaking on behalf 
of an individual, or ten (10) minutes if speaking on behalf of a group or organization. 

 VI. ANNUAL / RECURRING BUSINESS 

7:10 VII. PREVIOUS BUSINESS 
 i. Governance Policy (Bylaws) & Director Job Description (ACTION) 

Related documents (3):  
Current Bylaws with cross-references & comments; New Board 
Governance Policy proposed; Resolution 2012-13.004. 

Stokes 

 ii. Library Director Job Description (ACTION) 
Related documents (3):  
New Library Director Job Description proposed; Library Director 
Job Description dated 1985 w/ 1992 additions; 2007 Director 
Job Posting. 

Stokes 

 iii. OLA Passport Program (ACTION) 
Related documents (4):  
Letter from OLA President M. Burke; OLPP Summary; Statement 
of Shared Understanding; Sage Comments/Discussion 

Stokes 

7:45 VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 i. OTEC Power Equipment Easement (ACTION) 

Related documents (2):  
OTEC Right of Way Easement Agreement; Location map. 

Stokes 

8:10 IX. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS  
 i. Director’s Report 

Related documents (1):  Annotated Agenda. 
Stokes 

 ii. Business and Financial Report 
Related documents:  To be distributed at meeting. 

Hawes 

 X. Agenda items for next regular meeting:  Jan 14, 2013 Dielman 

8:30 XI. ADJOURNMENT Dielman 

The times of all agenda items except open forum are approximate and are subject to change. Other matters 
may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive Session may be held in 
accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current meeting's executive session.  

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations 
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property 

ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights 
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

 



Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting Agenda - Annotated 
Monday, Dec 10, 2012, 7:00 – 8:30 pm 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

I. Call to Order          Dielman 
II. Additions/deletions from agenda (ACTION)   Dielman 
III. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest    Dielman 
IV. Approval of minutes from previous Board Meeting (ACTION) Dielman 
V. Open public forum 
VI. Annual / Recurring Business 
VII. Previous Business 

i. Governance Policy & Director Job Description (ACTION) Stokes 
This is a significant revision that essentially reinvents the Board Bylaws. This proposed 
Governance Policy was first introduced to the Board at the September 2012 regular 
meeting.  It has since been discussed and tabled for further review at the October and 
November meetings.  Proposed Resolution FY12-13.004 (attached) formally adopts the 
changes. 

The need for sweeping change was prompted by discussions with the Hood River Library 
District Director who received training on best practices for administrative documents at 
the SDAO conference last year.  Many important provisions were not present in the 
BCLD current policy such as new requirements on declaring conflicts of interest, 
individual Board member limitations, public meetings requirements, and committees. 
These recommended policies are integrated into the proposed document.  Content better 
suited in other documents such as in a Director Job Description (also on agenda) and 
Vision Statement, has been removed and the policy has been wholly reorganized to 
conform to standard parliamentary practice for bylaws, which gives the policy a more 
predictable organization.   

ii. Library Director Job Description (ACTION)   Stokes 
The current revision is prompted by proposed changes to the Board Bylaws (Governance 
Policy) which included a rudimentary outline of the Director duties as Secretary. The 
fundamental description of that officer position has been retained but other 
responsibilities are moved to the Meetings sections IV.I & L and an updated Job 
Description for the Library Director. According to Personnel Files, the Job Description for 
the Library Director position appears to have last formally been updated in 1992 
(attached).  A brief Description of Position was created as part of the 2007 Director job 
posting (attached).   

iii. Oregon Library Passport Program (ACTION)   Stokes 
Previously discussed at the November 12 2012 Board meeting, the Sage Library System 
User Council has approved participation in the Oregon Library Passport Program (OLPP) 
on an optional basis for its members.   

OLPP is an initiative from the Oregon Library Association which tasked its resource-
sharing committee with creating a program to help libraries allow access to others' 
patrons. A statewide library catalog/card is currently infeasible for many reasons. 
However, the committee felt that a program similar to the Metropolitan Interlibrary 
eXchange (MIX) agreement, which has been functioning smoothly in the greater 
Portland metro area, would prove effective. The result is the Oregon Library Passport 
Program. 

The OLPP allows patrons to use libraries wherever they live, work, shop, or play. 
Basically, the patrons of participating libraries are eligible to get free cards from any of 
the other participating libraries. Legally-established public libraries as well as private and 
public academic libraries are eligible to participate. Patrons would need to present a 
library card from their home library. Then, they can get a card at the new library by 



Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting Agenda - Annotated 
Monday, Dec 10, 2012, 7:00 – 8:30 pm 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

going through their regular card application process. The program provides flexibility for 
the participating libraries by allowing them to contribute in whatever way makes them 
most comfortable. For instance, some libraries may choose to restrict access to their 
electronic resources or have lower limits on the number of items that may be checked 
out. 

The impact of this program on BCLD is projected to be minimal. Most patrons outside of 
the BCLD service area who would use our library are residents of a Sage Library System 
member library and may already check out items from BCLD with their local library card. 
The number of additional cards issued to visitors outside of the Sage Library System 
jurisdictions, such as people vacationing from Portland, the coast, or other areas, is 
expected to be negligible. 
 
Most importantly, joining this program allows BCLD patrons to receive free cards from 
other libraries, such as when they vacation in Bend, the coast, southwestern Oregon, 
etc. I recommend joining this program and evaluating use annually during the three-
year trial period. 

 
VIII. New Business 

i. OTEC Power Equipment Easement    Stokes 
OTEC has requested placement of a transformer on library premises. The attached legal 
documents for a Right of Way Easement and illustration were received from Carol 
Phillips, OTEC Staking Technician.  The “small transformer” is to be placed in the 
landscaping bed at the northwest corner of the building near the public phone. 
 
IX. Administrative Reports 

i. Director’s Report       Stokes 
General 
Regarding the expired Fountain Project, a notification of Artist Contract default & 
repayment due was sent to Phillip Charette via USPS certified mail on 11/29/12.  
Payment of $2,500 and/or an appeal for a payment schedule was stipulated to be due 
by January 31 2013. A signature of receipt form was returned with Charette’s signature 
dated 12/3/12.  
 
Facilities.  
The new Facilities staff, John Watson, has been active since beginning work on 11/5/12.  
His projects have included grounds winterization and safety concerns, clearing the 
drainage for water in the north parking lot, lighting, organization of utility room, carpet 
cleaning, plumbing fixture repair in Childrens’ Boys Room, and installation of baby 
changing stations (provided by Friends).  The improvements have made a noticeable 
difference and help improve safety for staff and the public. 
 
Friends.  
The Winter Book Sale began Friday evening 11/30/12 with an exclusive pre-sale for 
Friends members and opened to general public sales on Saturday 12/1/12.  Friends 
volunteers helped set up the sale and staffed the sales desk for the first weekend. The 
rest of the time, buyers were asked to bring their purchases to the library front desk. 
Proceeds have not yet been tabulated, but preliminary figures seem to be below last 
year’s sales. 
 



Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting Agenda - Annotated 
Monday, Dec 10, 2012, 7:00 – 8:30 pm 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 

The Friends also decorated the Bookmobile with Christmas lights so the District was able 
to have it included in the Twilight Parade on Saturday, 12/1/12.  This may have been 
the first time the Bookmobile was in that parade.  
 
Personnel 
Haines branch staff, Heidi Hull, has announced her retirement effective at the end of 
December.  I am planning to fill the open position internally with current branch staff 
and substitute staff.   
 
In addition, two senior staff who have worked Sunday shifts for about 10 years have 
requested to cease working that day.  I am working on filling that internally as well, but 
a new hire for weekends may be necessary.  On Saturdays and Sundays during the 
winter months, library use and operations is often so high that library staff report being 
strained or unable to provide adequate customer service.  Among options under 
consideration for this need is a high school student internship.  
 
Professional Development 
I am considering going to the ALA MidWinter Conference held in Seattle this year from 
January 25-29.  The primary benefit for this conference is the opportunity to review new 
technology, services, and equipment options demonstrated in the exhibits hall.  Baker 
County Friends of the Library is considering funding support for additional staff to 
attend.  
 
Programs, Events & Services 
Youth Services staff Melissa Shafer and Courtney Snyder have been conducting activities 
in preparation of a Hobbit celebration at the library on Friday 12/14/12 scheduled to 
coincide with release of the Hobbit part 1 movie.  At story times, kids have enjoyed 
creating “Hobbitat” dioramas and helped build a Smaug dragon now hanging at the 
entrance of the Childrens collection. The library will host a live band on 12/14, staff will 
be dressed in Tolkien-inspired costumes, and refreshments will be shared. Several 
movie tickets will be given away thanks to support from the Friends of the Library and 
Eltrym Theater  
 
Technology 
New software and service options for booking the public meeting rooms are being 
explored by the IT Manager Jim White.  Staff has long struggled with Meeting Room 
booking practices, particularly in regard to recurring meetings in which the some groups 
establish regular reservations but fail to consistently use the room at that time or cancel 
their reservation.  The informal practices of granting public access to the meeting room 
reservation book has led to some groups being inconvenienced due to overbooking 
incidents or confusion about reservation times and spaces.  We are looking for a solution 
that will allow better management of meeting room bookings while still being easy for 
the public and staff to use.  
 
Also being explored are alternatives to the current public computer booking software, 
SAM from Comprise.  Various problems persist such as users not being able to print pdf 
files consistently from web browsers, unsustainable remote connectivity at branches, 
users’ circumvention of login requirements and disabling workstation bookings, and 
growing memory issues at the server level.  One highly rated vendor supports computer 



Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting Agenda - Annotated 
Monday, Dec 10, 2012, 7:00 – 8:30 pm 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 

workstation reservations and printing and RFID systems for circulation which is a highly 
desirable solution to our DVD capacity problem, if we can obtain funding for it. 
 
Other 
The Governance Committee for the Sage Library System is revising the Memorandum of 
Understanding that each member institution must sign to join the consortium. The 
changes update the aged MOU (it was last revised in 2004) and move some detail over 
to the newly revised Sage Library System Bylaws. Hood River is having the changes 
reviewed by legal counsel, but they seem relatively minor. This MOU revision is related 
to Sage's explorations of its future and the potential that it may have a different fiscal 
agent than Eastern Oregon University, or even become a nonprofit unto itself 
 
Media Review / Discussion 

  
ii. Business & Financial Report     Hawes 

Review Statement of Income and Expenses   
Approve bills / Sign checks 

 
X. Agenda items for next meeting     Stokes 

 FY11-12 Audit Report 
 Code of Conduct revision 

 
XI. Adjournment        Dielman 



Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Monday, Nov 12, 2012, 7:00 – 8:30 pm 

Riverside Meeting Room, Baker County Public Library 
2400 Resort St, Baker City 
Gary Dielman, President 

 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 

 

Call To Order 
 

Gary Dielman, President called the meeting to order at 7:06 pm.  The 
meeting was held in the Riverside Meeting Room at the Baker County Public 
Library, 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.   
 
Present were: Gary Dielman, Betty Palmer, Nellie Forrester, Della 
Steele and Kyra Rohner-Ingram, Directors; Perry Stokes, Library 
Director; and Christine Hawes, Business Manager. 
 

Agenda 
Approved 
 

Dielman called for changes to the agenda.  No changes or additions were 
proposed. 

Minutes 
Approved 
 

Dielman asked for everyone to read the minutes.  No corrections were 
proposed.  Forrester made a motion to approve both the Agenda and 
the October 15, 2012 Minutes as presented; Steele seconded; 
passed unanimously. 
 

Public Comment 
 

Dielman stated for the record that there were no members of the public 
present for comments.  Stokes said that he did receive an email from a 
patron who is a volunteer photographer at recent Library events expressing 
thanks to staff and the Board for the opportunity.  Photos shared by this 
volunteer are posted on the library’s Facebook page.  Stokes added that 
since this individual has been authorized to act on behalf of the library at 
youth events, he was cleared by the background check program from 
Special Districts Association of Oregon. 
 

Annual Election 
of Board Officers 

Dielman asked for nominations and invited others to consider being the 
Board President.  Discussion ensued.  Forrester made a motion to 
continue the officers as currently slated with Gary Dielman, 
President and Betty Palmer, Vice President; Rohner-Ingram 
seconded; 3 voted yea, 2 abstained (Dielman, Palmer). 
 

Revenue 
Projection 

Referencing a Tax Revenue Projection Report, Stokes told the board that 
the growth rate of assessed valuation on the County is up by 3.16% 
(budgeted at 2.5%) which will mean an overall increase over last year’s 
projection of $3,093 in operating funds.   The increase would be larger if 
there weren’t a shortfall on Local Option Levy funds due to compression 
rising to 17.24% (budgeted at 15% compression) which means a revenue 
decrease of ($3,097).   
 
The upcoming Fiscal Year 2013-14 budget will use projections based on 
3.0% for an increase of $14,000.  With the PERS projected increase of 
$19,000, this means about $5,000 of cuts may be needed to cover the 
increase.  Stokes stated that more information from the Assessor is needed 
to gain a better understanding of where valuations are headed. 
 



Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Monday, Nov 12, 2012, 7:00 – 8:30 pm 

Riverside Meeting Room, Baker County Public Library 
2400 Resort St, Baker City 
Gary Dielman, President 

 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 

Resolution 2012-
13.004 Board 
Governance 
Policy 

Stokes directed the Board’s attention to the proposed Board Governance 
Policy projected onto a screen for viewing.  The draft includes changes 
previously suggested by Dielman via email to Stokes.   
 
Stokes went through Dielman’s suggested changes beginning with 
Membership Item F, “Interaction Agreement”.  Dielman considers the tone 
condescending and believes it would be ineffectual in the event of conflict. 
Instead he suggested it would be sufficient to reference Roberts Rules of 
Order which establishes protocol for appropriate meeting order and 
operations.  All agreed there should be structure in the event of a problem 
and agreed to strike the paragraph.  Roberts Rules is referenced in the new 
section V.I. Parliamentary Authority.   
 
Dielman also suggested removal of the awkward “s/he” gender reference in 
item I.H. Membership-Orientation and use the plural form “they” to make 
the policy generic.   
 
On item A.V. under Officers, Rohner-Ingram suggested moving the ORS 
citation directly behind the statement that the Director serves as the 
Secretary to the District rather than at the end of this paragraph.  Stokes 
made these changes to the draft.  
 
Discussion ensued on III. A.V. Responsibilities. “Employ all necessary 
agents...”  The assumption is that the Board hires the Director who hires all 
other staff; the board delegates this authority to the Director.  
 
With uncertainty remaining about the scope of the changes, Palmer 
requested tabling a decision to the December meeting to allow everyone 
more time to review the new policy since it will replace the current Bylaws. 
Stokes stated he would provide more clarity on the transition or elimination 
of content from the current bylaws.  Dielman tabled the resolution. 
 

Artist Contract 
Termination 

Stokes said that the Fountain Project Artist Contract expired at the end of 
October.  He is willing to send notice to the artist requesting repayment of 
$2,500 and asked the board for a deadline and terms.  Stokes stated he 
does have a standard repayment contract from patron collections that could 
be modified for use.  After discussion, the board agreed to cash repayment 
plan of 60-days with monthly payments up to one year.  It was agreed to 
give a deadline and assume he would contact the Library if he needs to 
make payments.  The possibility of small claims court was discussed.   
 
Rohner-Ingram made a motion directing Stokes to contact Phillip 
Charette requesting payment in full or that he contact the Library 
District within 60 days regarding a payment schedule or legal action 
may be taken to collect the debt; Forrester seconded;  Palmer 



Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Monday, Nov 12, 2012, 7:00 – 8:30 pm 

Riverside Meeting Room, Baker County Public Library 
2400 Resort St, Baker City 
Gary Dielman, President 

 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 

amended the motion adding that the letter be sent by certified mail;  
Forrester seconded; motion passed unanimously. 
 

Salt Lick Art 
Project 

Stokes reviewed for the board that Whit Deschner has initiated a project to 
place 4’-5’ bronze salt lick sculptures around town including one in front of 
the Library.  Dielman added that Whit is a local author and humorist that 
came up with the idea of the Salt Lick Contest about 5 years ago.  The 
intent of the project is to market Baker City as an arts community and draw 
more tourism.  Deschner is seeking funding for the bronze project.  Placing 
of the bronze statue would be in the front garden bed somewhere to the 
north of the fountain base.  It was suggested it would be fun to have it 
viewable out the setting room windows.   
 
The consensus was that if Whit obtains the funding the Library 
District is willing to cooperate with the project. 
 

Library Card 
Policy Revision 

Stokes told the board that the policy revision needed is to open issuance of 
Juvenile Cards to children of any age to obtain library cards. The change 
will remove the child age restriction and require that the parents account 
must be in good standing. This supports the Ready-To-Learn Project the 
District will be engaging in the upcoming year with partners such as 
Pendleton and La Grande libraries, the Intermountain ESD, and Oregon 
College Savings Plan. It has been proposed to deposit 2 cents into a college 
savings plan account for the child when the juvenile card is used.  Grant 
support or State funding is being sought to pilot the program. Project 
Ready to Learn will attempt to collect data on library use and find a 
correlation between high library use and literacy assessments upon 
entering kindergarten. The goals are to not only build early literacy but 
develop an expectation of attending college.  
 
In addition, the District’s Books for Babies program already includes 
coupons for parents to trade in for their infant’s library card.  As a matter of 
housekeeping, at age 18 any charges the child has are moved to the 
parents account and the child gets an adult account.   
 
It was suggested to also remove the words “dozens of” referencing the 
number of libraries participating in paragraph 2.    
 
Rohner-Ingram moved to approve the Library Card Eligibility policy 
as proposed with one additional change removing “dozens of” in 
paragraph 2; Palmer seconded; motion passed unanimously. 
 

PRCF Community 
Service 
Agreement 

Stokes said that the PRCF prison work crews are being reinstated.  The 
agreement is essentially the same as it has been prior to suspension of the 
program.  The crews will visit the library once a month.  The contract allows 



Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Monday, Nov 12, 2012, 7:00 – 8:30 pm 

Riverside Meeting Room, Baker County Public Library 
2400 Resort St, Baker City 
Gary Dielman, President 

 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 

that services can be provided at all branch locations.  The Special 
Conditions clause states that inmates are not allowed inside public areas 
during business hours although they can work outside.  Dielman added it is 
Department of Corrections rules that sex offenders are not allowed on the 
work crews so they will not be at the Library.  The new maintenance staff 
will be primarily responsible for coordinating work. 
 

Oregon Library 
Passport 
Program 

The Oregon Library Association has come up with an initiative that will 
expand resource-sharing among Oregon libraries.  The Passport Program 
(OLPP) would allow a library patron from one jurisdiction in Oregon to get a 
library card at any other participating OLPP library by presenting a valid 
library card and photo ID. Stokes said he is willing to give the program a 
chance.  The program guidelines are still being discussed by SAGE although 
the group has agreed to try the program.  Stokes says he believes a 
maximum of six items would be appropriate.  Palmer reiterated the benefits 
of the program, giving an example of using libraries in other counties when 
traveling. The Sage Council will discuss and vote on allowing member 
participation at its November meeting. If approved by Sage, Stokes will 
bring the program back to the Board for local approval. 
 

Administrative 
Reports 
 

Stokes gave the following Director’s Reports:  He attended the first 
committee meeting in October to review OLA Public Library standards.  The 
purpose of the committee is to overhaul the standards set for the public 
libraries in Oregon, and perhaps create an accreditation process.  During 
the meeting, participants discussed several “non-negotiable” traits libraries 
must possess to meet minimum standards.  He is on the Technology 
subcommittee which is currently reviewing standards from other states.   
 
The District’s Facilities and Grounds Maintenance position has been filled.  
Several outstanding candidates applied so the decision was difficult.  Mr. 
John Watson began work on November 5, 2012.  The position is budgeted 
for 16 hours a week and contracted for one year.  Renewal will depend on 
performance and the budget next year.  Watson restored a historic building 
he owns in Baker and has background in facilities lighting.  He will be 
replacing bulbs throughout the building to improve safety and efficiency.  
He will also be reviewing facility service contracts and making 
recommendations.   
 
Stokes is working with school staff to assemble a team from Baker City to 
compete in Oregon Battle of the Books (OBOB).  He is working with Joy 
LeaMaster, Library Media Specialist for 5J School District.  They presented 
the idea at South Baker Elementary.  Kids read books and compete in a 
Jeopardy-style competition.  There are regional and statewide competitions 
in the Spring; Baker County has previously not participated.  One of the 
library staff will help coach the team.   



Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Monday, Nov 12, 2012, 7:00 – 8:30 pm 

Riverside Meeting Room, Baker County Public Library 
2400 Resort St, Baker City 
Gary Dielman, President 

 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 

 
Stokes and Hawes are exploring options for accepting Credit Card 
payments.  Initially bank options were found to be too costly for the low 
volume the library would need.  PayPal was discovered to have the capacity 
to run transactions with a card reader device attached to either a smart 
phone or iPad.  PayPal only charges a per transaction fee so the cost would 
be minimal.  When informed of more competitive options in the 
marketplace, banks have begun to offer reduced rates.  Evergreen software 
already has a built in feature that allows PayPal payments; an iPad2 was 
purchased for $400 to pursue the PayPal option. 
 

Business 
Manager’s 
Report 
 

Christine passed out the financial statements and check packets.  The 
General Fund received two tax turnovers to-date in November totaling 
$225,581 with two more anticipated.  Historically four tax turnovers making 
up nearly 80% of the annual tax revenues are received in November.  US 
Bank for the past couple years has issued its TAN funds in one lump sum 
rather than allowing draws.  Tax Anticipation Note funds of $86,563 were 
deposited into the general checking account on October 25; the District 
utilized $33,300 of these funds for three days to cover payroll and bills.   
 
On Monday, November 5, notice of tax receipts was received and November 
7, the TAN note was paid in full plus interest of $86.56 (for 9 days).  The 
current cash balance is $145,265 after paying the November bills.   
 
In Personal Services, 89% of staff is utilizing direct deposit.  The Jobs Plus 
line is 287% spent at $5,970.80 less the corresponding DHS 
reimbursements of ($4,931.32); the net expense is $1039.48 or actually 
50% of budget ($2076).  Overall, Personal Services is at 42.5% which is in 
line with anticipated budget.   
 
In Materials & Services, the Books budget is 50% spent with checks in this 
category including Apple $2,848.98, Ingram $9,942.99, Pumpkin Books 
$674.32, Value Line reference subscription $898, and LEO World Book 
subscription $600.  In addition, the annual SAGE membership of $10,000 
was paid with the budget being 95% spent for this line.  In Computer 
Maintenance, the SAM subscription of $1,645 (decrease from last years 
payment of $3,169 is due to removing software at the branches until a 
solution can be found), and computer purchases of $2,699 on the Visa 
included 10 computers, 10 keyboards and a replacement printer for the 
front desk.  In Utilities, the Baker City water bill was $425 (comparable to 
last November at $416) and 2 checks to OTEC $1,524.99 Baker and 
$112.20 Haines libraries.  In Telecommunications, the Baker Library 
telephone budget is low at 35% spent.  The BendTel bill paid was $140.98 
whereas last year the November bill from Integra Telecom was $211.90; 
the library is saving about $70 a month with the new company.  The vendor 



Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Monday, Nov 12, 2012, 7:00 – 8:30 pm 

Riverside Meeting Room, Baker County Public Library 
2400 Resort St, Baker City 
Gary Dielman, President 

 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 

was changed after going through the bid process required by the E-Rate 
program. 
 
Checks were signed and approved. 
 

Next Meeting 
Date 
 

The next Board meeting will be December 10, 2012. 

Adjourn 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:27pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Perry Stokes, 
Secretary to the Board 
 
PS/ch 

 
 



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
LIBRARY BOARD – BYLAWS 

Revised – Aug 8, 2011 
Cross-references and comments included for consideration of proposed 

revision to Board Governance Policy 12/10/12 

2400 Resort St • Baker City, OR 97814 • 541-523-6419 • www.bakerlib.org 

 

ARTICLE 1 

DISTRICT DESCRIPTION 

The library system is comprised of a main library in Baker 
City, called the Baker County Public Library, and branch 
libraries in Haines, Halfway, Huntington, Richland and 
Sumpter. [Eliminated. Not necessary in governance 
document] 

The library system is governed by a board of elected 
members called the Baker County Library District Board. 
[I.A.I. Membership – Composition.] 

ARTICLE II 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of the library is to provide library services in 
support of education, recreation and information- 
gathering for the people of Baker County, Oregon, and 
vicinity.[Eliminated. This is more of a Mission or Vision 
Statement, which should be separate from governance 
document.] 

ARTICLE III 

MEMBERSHIP 

The Board consists of five members, elected at large by 
position number by the electors of the district per ORS 
357.241(b). [I.A.I. Membership – Composition.] 

The term of a member is four years.  [I.B.I. Membership -
Term of Office]  A vacancy is filled by the Board as 
provided in ORS 198.320. [I.C. Membership-Vacancies.] 

The District Librarian is an ex officio non-voting member 
of the board.  [II.A.V. Officers-Officers and Duties.] 

ARTICLE IV 

OFFICES 

OFFICE OF PRESIDENT. 

The President is elected by the members of the Board at 
the November meeting for a term of one year and takes 
office immediately following election. [II.B.I.-II. Officers-
Nominations and Elections; II.C. Officers -Term of 
Office] If a vacancy in the office of the President occurs, 
the members will elect a successor to fulfill the unexpired 
term at the next meeting.  [II.D. Officers-Vacancies] 

The President presides over the meetings of the Board, 
appoints committees, and signs all legal documents on 
behalf of the District where required, except that the 
President may delegate signing of orders, warrants, 
checks for the deposit or withdrawal of District funds to 
other Directors or to the Library Director. [II.A.II. Officers-
Officers and Duties] 

The election, term and filling of vacancy of the Vice 
President are as for the President. 

In the President’s absence, the Vice President serves as 
President pro tempore and has all the powers and 

 



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
LIBRARY BOARD – BYLAWS 

Revised – Aug 8, 2011 
 

2400 Resort St • Baker City, OR 97814 • 541-523-6419 • www.bakerlib.org 

2 

responsibilities of that office during the absence.  [II.A.III. 
Officers-Officers and Duties] 

OFFICE OF SECRETARY 

The Office of Secretary is held by the Librarian as 
required by ORS 357.226(1).  [II.A.V. Officers-Officers 
and Duties] 

The Secretary prepares the agenda and minutes for 
Board meetings, sends copies of the minutes of the 
previous meeting to Board members before the next 
meeting, [IV.I. Meetings-Agenda;  IV.L Meetings-
Minutes]. provides notice to the public of all Board 
meetings in conformance with ORS 192.610-690, Public 
Meeting Law [IV.J. Meetings-Notice], and signs or causes 
to be signed by authorized staff member, all orders, 
warrants, and checks for the deposit or withdrawal of 
District funds. [Eliminated. Included in Director Job 
Description, Essential Duties,6.] 

ARTICLE V The Board has the powers enumerated in ORS 357.261. 

[III. A. Responsibilities] 

ARTICLE VI 

MEETINGS 

Regular meetings are held at the Baker County Public 
Library at 7:00 p.m. on the second Monday of each 
month.  A regular meeting may be cancelled or held at a 
different time and place upon majority vote of the Board. 
[IV.B. Meetings-Regular meetings] 

The President will promptly call special meetings upon the 
request of two Board members. [IV.D. Meetings-Special 
meetings] 

Conduct of meetings is governed by Roberts Rules of 
Order, as amended by the Board. [IV.A. Parliamentary 
Authority] 

A quorum for the conduct of business consists of three 
Board members present in person, excluding the ex 
officio member. [IV.H. Meetings-Quorum] 

http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/357.261


BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
LIBRARY BOARD – BYLAWS 

Revised – Aug 8, 2011 
 

2400 Resort St • Baker City, OR 97814 • 541-523-6419 • www.bakerlib.org 

3 

ARTICLE VII The Librarian is appointed by the Board and serves as the 
administrator of the library system.  The Librarian has the 
following duties: 

1. Carries out policies adopted by the Board. 
[Director Job Description - Essential Duties,2.] 

2. Manages staff according to the District Personnel 
Policy. [Director Job Description - Essential 
Duties,5.] 

3. Provides for care and maintenance of the District 
building, grounds, and all other property belonging 
to the District. [Director Job Description - 
Essential Duties,12.] 

4. Prepares the District budget and administers the 
District within the budget adopted by the Board. 
[Director Job Description - Essential Duties,6.] 

5. Attends all meetings of the Board and serves as 
Secretary of the Board (See officer duties in Article 
IV). [Director Job Description - Essential 
Duties,11.] 

[Eliminated. Included in Director Job Description, 
Essential Duties,6.] 

ARTICLE VIII 

AMENDMENTS 

Amendments to these Bylaws may be proposed at any 
meeting of the Board and adopted by majority vote at the 
next regular meeting after proposal. [VII. Amendments. 
Changed to “by resolution at any regular or special 
meeting…” ] 

 
APPROVED THIS 8th day of August 
2011 

  

   
 BOARD MEMBERS:     

   
   

BCLD Position 1  BCLD Position 2 
Betty Palmer (Vice President)  Della Steele 

   
   

BCLD Position 3  BCLD Position 4 
Kyra Rohner-Ingram  Gary Dielman (President) 

   
 ATTEST:  

BCLD Position 5   

Nellie Forrester  Signature:  Perry Stokes 
  District Secretary 
   

 



Baker County Library District | Board Governance PolicyAdopted: xx-xx-xxxx 
 
Color key:  Black = content retained from previous version. Red = new content not in 
previous bylaws. Strike throughs = edits from previous board meeting. 

Board Governance Policy *DRAFT* 

I. Membership 

A. Composition 

I. The Directors of the District are a Board of five members elected by the electors of the District. 

(ORS 357.226-357.236). 

II. Any elector residing within the District is qualified to serve as a Board member (ORS 

357.231). Current District employees or officers may not serve as Board members. 

III. Board members are elected at large. 

B. Term of office 

I. Board members shall serve four-year terms or until election and qualification of a successor 

(ORS 357.231). 

II. Terms shall be staggered so that not all Board members start four-year terms at the same 

time. 

III. Each district board member elected shall take an oath of office and shall hold office from July 1, 

next following election (ORS 357.236(2)).  

C. Vacancies 

Vacancies on the Board due to resignation or incapacity to serve are to be filled by the remaining 

members of the Board in accordance with ORS 198.320. 

D. Conflict of interest 

No member of the Board may have any financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any 

contract to which the District is a party, nor receive a salary or any payment for material or for 

services rendered to the District. (ORS 357.460(1)). 

I. In the event of a potential conflict of interest, a Board member shall declare such conflict but 

may participate in discussions and vote. If any Board member has had any ex parte contact 

in a quasi-judicial matter, the member shall declare such contact prior to discussing the 

matter. 

II. In the event of an actual conflict of interest, a Board member shall declare such conflict and 

may not participate in discussions or vote. 

E. Compensation 

Board members may be reimbursed for expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. ORS 

357.460(2). 

F. Interaction Agreement 

In its work together, the Board always shall seek the best outcomes for the District, its users, and its 

taxpayers. The Board shall listen carefully to one another and strive to hear the best elements of a 

suggestion. The Board shall seek to create an atmosphere where differences of opinion are expressed 

freely. The Board shall involve each other in discussions they have about the District to ensure that 

everyone is able to make informed decisions. The Board shall speak carefully to respect the time and 

feelings of its volunteer colleagues. The Board shall celebrate its successes and persevere through 

difficult times. 

G. Board Candidates 
District staff shall cooperate impartially with candidates for the Board and provide them with information 
about Board policies, administrative regulations, and other aspects of the operation of the District. 



Board Governance Policy, p.2 

 

H. Orientation of new Board members 

The Board and District staff shall assist each new members-elect and appointees to understand the 

Board's functions, policies, and procedures before s/he they takes office. 

II. Officers 

A. Officers and duties. 

I. The officers of the Board shall be a President, Vice-President, and Secretary. 

II. The President shall perform those duties prescribed by this policy, the Oregon Revised 

Statutes, and the parliamentary authority. The President's role as presiding officer of the 

Board does not affect the president's right to vote. The President shall sign official district 

documents on behalf of the Board when authorized by the Board. The President may 
delegate signing of orders, warrants, checks for the deposit or withdrawal of District 
funds to other Directors or to the Library Director. 

III. The Vice-President shall have the powers and duties of the President in his/her absence. 

IV. In the absence of the President and Vice-President, the remaining three members shall elect 

a temporary Presiding Officer. 

V. The Library Director or his/her designee shall serve as Secretary of the District (ORS 

357.226.). The Director may delegate any of the secretary's duties to staff. The Secretary 

shall perform those duties prescribed by this policy, the Oregon Revised Statutes, and the 

parliamentary authority. The Secretary is an ex-officio, non-voting member of the Board.  

B. Nominations and elections 

I. Nominations for President and Vice-President shall be taken from the floor during the first 

regular meeting in July. 

II. Elections shall be held by voice vote. The candidate receiving a majority of votes cast shall 

be elected. 

C. Term of office 

The President and Vice-President shall serve for one year or until their successors are elected. 

Their term of office shall begin upon election. 

D. Vacancies 

A vacancy in the President or Vice-President position shall be filled by the Board for the unexpired 

portion of the term of the vacant office at the next regular or special meeting. 

E. The majority (three members) of the full Board is necessary to adopt a motion, resolution, 

ordinance, or to take any other action. 

 

III. Responsibilities 

A. The Board shall: 

I. Formulate District policies. 

II. Take action as necessary for operation of the District by use of ordinances, resolutions, and 

motions. 

III. Appoint the Library Director, who shall be the executive and administrative officer of the 

District. 

IV. Supervise the Library Director and oversee District operations. 

V. Employ all necessary agents and assistants. 

VI. Arrange for legal representation and consultation. Legal counsel shall report to and be 

responsible to the Board but shall communicate with the Board primarily through the 

President and Library Director. Individual Board members shall refrain from communicating 



Board Governance Policy, p.3 

 

with legal counsel without the consent of the President or explicit Board direction. 

VII. Arrange for deposit and distribution of tax funds, grant monies, and donations. (ORS 

357.276) 

VIII. Oversee budget 

a. Establish a Budget Committee. (ORS 294.336) 

b. Appoint a Budget officer who shall prepare or supervise the preparation of the budget 

document under the direction of the Board. (ORS 294.331) 

c. Approve the annual budget and assess, levy, and collect property taxes (including 

setting the tax rate within the limits approved by the electors) as per ORS 357.261(3) 

d. Oversee District finances. 

IX. Refer tax measures to the voters. (ORS 357.261(9)). 

X. Approve all contracts. 

XI. Approve employee salary schedules and benefits. 

XII. Appoint committees as needed for the operation of the District. Committees have no powers 

except those delegated by the Board. 

XIII. Take other such action as consistent with Oregon law including ORS 357.261 (District 

Powers), as the Board deems appropriate. 

B. Limitations on individual Board members 

I. Board members have no individual powers separate from the powers of the Board and have 

no authority to act individually without authorization from the Board. 

II. A Board member shall act as a spokesperson for the Board only when so designated. When 

not representing the agreed position of the Board, members must identify their statements as 

their personal opinions and not those of the Board. 

III. The Board, by majority vote of the full Board, may suspend all or a portion of these policies 

and procedures, provided that such suspension is consistent with Oregon law. 

IV. Meetings 

A. Public meeting law 

All Board meetings and work sessions shall be conducted in accordance with Oregon Public 

Meetings Law. 

I. All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public except as otherwise provided by Oregon 

Public Meetings Law. 

II. Every regular and special meeting and work session shall include opportunity for public comment. 

The presiding officer may limit the length of public comment and may revoke permission to speak 

if a speaker's comments are unduly repetitive or disruptive. 

B. Regular meetings 

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held monthly on a regularly-scheduled day of the month. The 

day and time shall be set by resolution annually during the regular meeting in July. 

I. The Board may cancel or reschedule the date or dates of regular meetings as it deems fit, subject 

to the notice provisions of the Oregon Revised Statutes. 

C. Work sessions 

Work sessions of the Board may be called by the President or by three Board members. 

I. Subjects discussed at a work session shall be limited to the agenda items for the work session. 

II. Final decisions shall not be made at a work session. 

III. A work session may be held in conjunction with a regular meeting or a special meeting. Final 

action may be taken at a regular or special meeting held in conjunction with a work session or at 

the next regular or special meeting. 



Board Governance Policy, p.4 

 

D. Special meetings 

Special meetings may be held at the request of the President or any three members of the Board. If 

the President is absent from the District, special board meetings may be held at the request of the 

Vice-President. No special meeting shall be held upon less than twenty-four hours public notice. 

E. Emergency meetings 

Emergency meetings may be held at the request of persons entitled to call special meetings, upon 

less than twenty-four hours’ notice in cases of emergency. An emergency exists where there are 

objective circumstances that create a real and substantial risk of harm to the District if action is 

delayed. The caller(s) of the meeting shall state the reasons for calling it and why it could not be 

delayed. The Board shall then determine if the reasons are sufficient to hold an emergency meeting 

and the minutes for such a meeting shall describe the emergency justifying less than 24 hours' 

notice. Only business related directly to the emergency shall be conducted at an emergency meeting. 

F. Executive sessions 

I. Shall be held in accordance with Oregon Public Meetings Law. . 

II. The applicable statute must be stated prior to the meeting. 

III. The Board shall not make any final decisions during executive session. 

IV. Board members, staff, media representatives, and other persons present shall not discuss or 

disclose executive session proceedings outside of the executive session without prior authorization 

of the Board as a whole. 

G. Location 

All Board meetings shall be held within the geographic boundaries of the District, except for training 

sessions held without any deliberative action. Meetings typically shall be held at the Baker County 

Public Library in the Riverside Meeting Room. 

H. Quorum 
A majority of the Board (3 members) shall constitute a quorum. 

I. Agenda 

The agenda shall be set by the Library Director in consultation with the President. Meetings should 

generally stay on published agenda topics, although by agreement with a majority of the Board 

members additional topics may be added to the agenda. 

J. Notice 

Notice of the time, place, and principal subjects shall be given for all meetings as soon as is feasible. 

Notices shall be sent to Board members, local media, persons who have requested notice in writing, 

and any persons who the District knows may have a special interest in a particular action (?), 

unless such notification would be unduly burdensome or expensive. The agenda shall also be posted 

at all District library branches. Notice for meetings called only to hold executive sessions shall be 

given in the same manner as notice for other meetings set forth above, except that the notice need 

only indicate the general subject matter to be considered at the executive session and the statutory 

basis for calling it. 

K. Accessibility 

I. No meeting shall be held in any place where discrimination on the basis of race, creed, color, sex, 

age, national origin, or disability is practiced. All meetings shall be held in places accessible to 

the handicapped. 

II. The District shall provide upon request interpreters for the hearing impaired as provided for by 

Oregon Public Meetings Law. 

L. Minutes 

Minutes must be kept of all Board meetings and Board-appointed committee meetings. Minutes shall 



Board Governance Policy, p.5 

 

include a list of present Board members, all motions, proposals, resolutions, orders, ordinances, and 

measures proposed and their disposition, results of all votes, including the vote of each member by 

name, and the substance of any discussion on any matter. Minutes for executive sessions shall be 

kept and retained separately. 

M. Planning session 
The Board will undertake a planning session at least bi-annually. 

N. Virtual participation 
Except for hearings on quasi-judicial matters and executive sessions, members may participate in 
meetings via teleconference, videoconference, web conference, or other technologies allowing 
synchronous communication among members. Notice and opportunity for public access shall be 
provided when meetings are conducted by electronic means. 

 

V. Committees 

A. Budget Committee 

The Budget Committee shall be a standing committee of the Board. 

I. The committee shall consist of the five members of the Board and five appointed electors 

within the District. Appointed members cannot be officers or employees of the District. 

II. Committee members shall serve for three years. Their terms shall be staggered so that as 

near as possible one third of the terms of the appointed members shall end each year. 

III. Appointed members may not receive any compensation for their service on the committee. 

IV. A vacancy on the committee shall be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion of the term 

of the vacant position at the next regular or special meeting. 

B. Special committees 

I. Special committees may be appointed at the discretion of the Board or President as 

necessary to assist the Board in accomplishing its purposes. 

II. Special committee members need not be members of the Board. 

C. Public meeting rules 
Meetings of Board committees are subject to the Oregon Public Meetings Law. 

VI. Parliamentary Authority 

A. The latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern the Board in all cases in 

which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the Oregon Revised 

Statutes, this policy, and any special rules of order the Board may adopt. 

VII. Amendments 

A. This policy may be amended by resolution at any regular or special meeting provided that at least 

five days’ notice is given. 

Approved by the Board of Directors, __________  

Last amended, ______________________ 



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
LIBRARY BOARD – RESOLUTION No. 2012-13.004 

2400 Resort St • Baker City, OR 97814 • 541-523-6419 • www.bakerlib.org 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community 
Libraries:   
 

Baker City 
Haines 
Halfway 
Huntington 
Richland 
Sumpter 
Bookmobile 
 

IN THE MATTER OF  ) Baker County Library District 
Revising Bylaws to Board Governance  )     
Policy ) Resolution No. 2012-13.004 

 ) (12/10/12) 
 
WHEREAS, the Special Districts Association of Oregon (SDAO) provides sample 
policies to help districts; and 
 
WHEREAS, SDAO's sample Public Meetings policy has several helpful suggestions; and 
 
WHEREAS, standard parliamentary procedure as established in the latest edition of 
Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised has recommended practices for governing 
documents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District's governing Board Bylaws requires revisions to bring it in line 
with the recommendations of both sources; 
 
Now, therefore be it RESOLVED, that the Board amends its Bylaws to become the Board 
Governance Policy as presented in the attached document and discussed and revised 
during the Board's meeting of December 10, 2012. 
 
 

ADOPTED THIS  10th day of Dec 2012  
  
  
   FOR THE BOARD:  
      Signature:  Gary Dielman, 
 BCLD Board President 
  
  

ATTEST:   
 Signature:  Perry Stokes  
 District Secretary  

 



Baker County Library District  Board Approved: xx-xx-xxxx 

Job Description 
Library Director 

 

Summary 
The Library Director will provide direct leadership in the planning, direction and oversight of library 
services within the district. 
 
Classification: Library Director 
 
Essential duties and responsibilities 

1. Provide leadership in developing District vision, goals and objectives in conjunction with the 
Board of Directors.  Establish operational targets in compliance with overall goals and 
objectives. Plan and develop collections, programs, services and activities based on analysis of 
District growth, usage patterns, workload, staffing levels, patron requests and related legislative 
issues to provide appropriate library services to the community.   

2. Administer board policies, make policy recommendations to the Board, and provide executive 
support and information to the Board. 

3. Develop strong partnerships within the community and the state.  Advocate for the Library by 
representing the District at public forums, attend various community group, professional, and 
civic organization meetings to communicate Library policies and programs, and develop good 
will.   

4. Champion community involvement for the operation and services provided both now and for 
the future. Work closely with the Baker County Library Foundation and Friends of the Baker 
County Library to develop creative approaches to ensure robust local fundraising and volunteer 
support.  

5. Supervise personnel directly or through subordinates.  Hire and train or over see training of 
employees and volunteers.  Assign, supervise and evaluate work of subordinates, including 
supervisory personnel. Hear grievances and administer disciplinary action as needed.  

6. Prepare the budget for the Library Board approval.  Monitor and approve deposits and 
expenditures in accordance with the budget. Countersign with Board President or designee for 
disbursement of District funds. Administer grants, gifts, state and federal money.   

7. Develop the collection of all types of materials such as print, media and electronic resources.  
Classify and catalog materials, provide reference services and manage the withdrawals from 
circulation. 

8. Oversee maintenance of the collection.    
9. Evaluate, develop and implement goals, programs, policies and procedures to improve the 

effectiveness and efficiency of department responsibilities.  Develop long-range plans for library 
services to the District.   

10. Stay current with library and information services and technology, including the integrated 
library system, electronic resources and Internet.    

11. Act as the Board Secretary and perform or delegate those duties as required. 
12. Administer the maintenance of library facilities and equipment.   
13. Perform other duties as assigned by the Baker County Library District Board of Directors. 

 
 
 
 
 



Job description, Library Director, p.2 
 

Peripheral duties 
1. Assist in ancillary Library duties as workload and staffing levels dictate. 
2. Maintain proficiency by attending training and meetings, reading materials, and meeting with 

others in areas of responsibility. 
3. Maintain work areas in a clean and orderly manner.  

 
Supervision received 
Works under the general supervision of the Library District Board of Directors. Communicates regularly 
with the Board President in carrying out the Board's directives.   
 
Supervision exercised 
This position directly supervises all other employees of the District. 
 
Desired minimum qualifications 
Education and experience: 

1. Completion of an ALA-accredited Master's of Library Science program. Master’s degree in library 
and information science from an American Library Association-accredited institution.   

2. Successful experience in the administration of library operations and services. 
3. Demonstrated leadership, supervisory experience and strategic planning.   
4. Substantial experience in public services and dealing with the public.  
5. Success with grants, bonds, community fundraising, and other public funding venues.   
6. Excellent interpersonal, interviewing, counseling, and communications skills.   
7. Extensive experience with varied budgeting processes.   
8. Experience using technologies to provide and enhance library services.   

 
Necessary knowledge, skills, and abilities: 

1. Demonstrated successful leadership, interpersonal and supervisory skills working with a diverse 
population. 

2. Strong public service orientation and ability to work effectively in a team environment.  
3. Effective problem solving, analytical and organizational skills.   
4. Effective written and verbal communication skills.   
5. Ability to manage multiple tasks in a rapidly changing environment.   
6. Ability to prepare and manage a budget.   
7. Knowledge of collection development, acquisitions, cataloging, database management, public 

and technical services, and reference.   
8. Ability to perform and prioritize tasks with limited supervision.   
9. Thorough knowledge of current trends and developments in the library field.   
10.  Thorough knowledge of library reference sources, print and online.   
11. Knowledge of pertinent federal, state, and local policies, procedures, laws, and regulations.  
12. Working knowledge of public relations procedures. 
13. Thorough knowledge of modern management principles and practices as they relate to the 

administration of public libraries.   
14. Ability to motivate, direct, and supervise professional, paraprofessional and clerical library 

personnel in a manner conducive to full performance and high morale.   
15. Considerable knowledge of children’s, young adult and adult literature.  
16. Ability to plan, organize, supervise, and evaluate the work of employees in diversified library 

activities. 
 



Job description, Library Director, p.3 
 

Tools and equipment used 
Computer, including the Internet, general office applications, design software, presentation 
applications, and integrated library system; LCD projectors; book carts; copy machine; telephone; book 
bins, magazine storage racks and boxes; typewriters; fax machines; general office tools; calculators; 
media players; televisions; other tools and equipment necessary to perform the essential and peripheral 
duties of the position. 
 
Working conditions 

1. Stands or walks 50% of the time, 75% of the time when assigned to the public service desks and 
90% of the time when delivering presentations or programming.  

2. Frequently required to walk, sit, talk, or hear. Occasionally required to climb, balance, stoop, 
kneel, crouch, or crawl.   

3. Moves back and forth between all areas of the library.   
4. Retrieves and replaces library materials from 2 inches from the floor to 7 feet from the floor.   
5. Regularly lifts and/or moves up to 10 pounds, frequently lifts and/or moves up to 25 pounds, 

and occasionally lifts and/or moves up to 50 pounds.   
6. Travels and works regularly at all library branches within the district.  
7. Stares at computers screens and monitors regularly while carrying out essential job functions.  
8. Normal office exposure to noise, stress, and disruptions.  
9. Full-time, salaried position. Some weekend and evening hours are required.  

 
Selection guidelines 
Formal application, rating of education and experience, oral interview, reference check, job-related 
tests, and criminal background check may be required.  
 
The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be 
performed. Omission of specific duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, 
related, or a logical assignment to the position. 
 
This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and 
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements of 
the job change.  
 















 

 

 

 
November 1, 2012 

 

Dear Public and Academic Library Directors, 

 

At the direction of the Oregon Library Association Executive Board, the OLA Resource 

Sharing Committee has developed a program to address a long-standing goal of the 

Association to extend patron borrowing privileges between libraries and across 

boundaries.  As your OLA Presidents we are delighted to invite your library to join the 

Oregon Library Passport Program, slated to begin January 1, 2013. 

 

Past OLA strategic plans – Vision 2000, Vision 2010, and Vision 2020 – all spoke to a 

desire to extend library services and access to all Oregonians at home and around the 

State, and to share resources between libraries.  We often talked about a statewide library 

card or a statewide catalog.  The discussion of opening our doors to sharing resources 

with other libraries’ patrons always got bogged down in complex, expensive and 

insurmountable plans and requirements.  Enter pragmatism.  In 2011, the OLA Executive 

Board tasked the Resource Sharing Committee with devising a shared borrowing plan 

that could be implemented easily and inexpensively.    

 

The Oregon Library Passport Program builds on Oregon’s tradition of cooperative 

programs, such as AnswerLand and Library2Go, and successful cooperative 

organizations like Orbis Cascade, Sage, and MIX.  The Passport Program recognizes that 

library service ought to mirror the way Oregonians live, work, shop and play, and reduce 

barriers to library service.   The Passport Program is meant to be a patron-focused 

exchange; a library opens its doors to users of other participating libraries, and vice versa.  

Libraries give a little and their patrons get a lot back in return. 

 

Over the last year the Resource Sharing Committee has been talking to library groups, 

listening to your ideas and concerns, and outlining a program that can be implemented 

easily and at little or not cost to participating libraries.  All you need to do is say, “yes.” 

Well, say yes, and then fill out and return the attached Statement of Shared 

Understanding.  The OLA Executive Board has set a three-year trial-period for the 

Passport Program.  We are hoping that many public and academic libraries will be on-

board by January 2013 to being the program, but we’ll certainly welcome you later, too. 

More information about the Passport Program is available on the 

www.LibrariesofOregon.org/passport website.  Questions can also be directed to the 



Resource Sharing Committee, and a list-serv will be established for participating libraries 

to share information, ask questions and get advice. 

 

Following is a summary of the Passport Program, and the Statement of Shared 

Understanding.  Please complete and return the form to the address noted.  We hope your 

library will opt to participate.  

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Michele Burke, OLA President 

Chemeketa Community College Library 

 

 

Abigail Elder, OLA Past President 

Tualatin Public Library 

 

 

Penny Hummel, OLA President-Elect 

Canby Public Library 

 

 



Oregon Library Passport Program     

LIBRARY ACCESS FOR THE WAY OREGONIANS LIVE     
 

Oregon libraries traditionally support cooperative programs that extend service across 

boundaries, including services such as Library2Go and AnswerLand. These have a shared 

goal of meeting Oregonians where they are. The Oregon Library Passport Program 

builds on this tradition by providing access to physical materials as well. The Passport 

Program is sponsored by the Oregon Library Association’s Resource Sharing Committee 

and is set to begin January 1, 2013. 
 

The Oregon Library Passport Program recognizes that library service ought to mirror the 

way Oregonians live, work, shop, and play, and reduce barriers to library service. The 

underlying premise of the Passport Program is that cardholders of legally-established 

libraries ought to be able to use other legally-established libraries.  The Passport 

Program is meant to be an exchange; a library extends service to users of other 

participating libraries, and vice versa.   
 

Why should a library participate? What are the benefits of the Passport Program? 

• Opens new doors to materials, information and resources for your patrons,  

• Expands access to the state’s library resources,  

• Increases use of your library materials and resources,  

• Libraries give a little and their patrons get a lot back in return,   

• Improves goodwill between neighboring jurisdictions creating cooperative 

relationships that will foster additional cooperative opportunities in the future. 
 

Summary of the Oregon Library Passport Program:  

• The Passport Program is a voluntary, opt-in program and a library’s participation 

is free. A library’s choice to participate determines whether or not its patrons 

can participate. 
 

• The Passport Program is open to all legally-established public libraries, and both 

public and private academic libraries.  
 

• Borrowing is free of charge to the patron and activity is patron initiated: patron 

visits a Participating Library and registers for a card; patron complies with that 

library’s policies for personal identification, checkout periods, limits, etc.; patron 

checks out materials; patron returns the materials to the owning library; and 

patron is responsible for costs of any overdue fees or lost materials. There is no 

library-to-library intervention required.  



 

• The Participating Library is allowed to set its own limits on use by Passport 

patrons. These may be different from local patrons’ limits. For example, local 

patrons may be able to check out 50 items at a time, but Passport patrons have a 

checkout limit of 10 items at a time.  
 

• The Program provides access to materials: checking out materials, placing holds 

on materials, etc. The Participating Library can determine what other services, if 

any, are extended (for example, Inter-Library Loans from outside the area or 

access to online resources).   
 

• In order to participate, patrons are required to have a Home Library card first.  

This becomes his or her “Passport” to other Participating Libraries.  Patrons 

present their Home Library cards at each Participating Library in order to register 

for cards at those libraries. 
 

• Patrons who reside in areas that are unserved by a public library may purchase a 

library card at a neighboring library.  This becomes their Home Library for the 

purposes of this Program.    
 

• The Passport Program will begin with a three-year trial period beginning January 

1, 2013. This will allow time to collect and analyze statistical and other data on 

the program. Participating Libraries will be surveyed during the trial period and 

may be asked to survey Passport Program patrons as well. 
 

• Participating Libraries will identify participants in borrowing records using a 

unique patron code or type, for example, “Passport Program,” in order to 

facilitate statistical data-gathering and to allow local libraries to set their own 

use parameters. 
 

• The Oregon State Library will provide support via the LibrariesofOregon.org 

website, including lists of Participating Libraries, basic rules of the program for 

libraries and the public, and participation documents for libraries. It is 

anticipated that information will be available on the website sometime in 

October. 
 

Questions can be directed to members of the Resource Sharing Committee: 

• Eva Calcagno, Washington County Cooperative Library Services 

• Ed Gallagher, Albany Public Library 

• John Hunter, Woodburn Public Library 

• Buzzy Nielsen, Hood River County Library District 

• Robin Shapiro, Portland Community College 

• Stephen Skidmore, Siuslaw Public Library 

• Jane Tucker, Astoria Public Library 

• Dan White, Scappoose Public Library 



Oregon Library Passport Program 

Statement of Shared Understanding 

 

The Oregon Library Passport (OLP) Program is scheduled to begin January 1, 2013 and 

operate as a pilot program through December 31, 2015. Libraries are encouraged to 

begin participation by January 1, 2013 in order to have a large core of Participating 

Libraries at inception, but may join at a later date. 

 

In exchange for allowing its registered patrons to have expanded access to the resources 

of other Participating Libraries in the OLP Program, Participating Library agrees to:  

• Establish a unique patron registration code for OLP participating patrons with 

library use parameters determined by the Participating Library (check out limits, 

holds placed, services provided, etc.) 

• Issue local library cards to OLP Patrons who present their home library cards as 

program passports 

• Participating Library will not charge OLP Patrons for registration beyond any 

previously established registration fee levied on other patrons as well 

• Provide access to library materials as determined by the locally-set parameters 

• Provide information to OLP Patrons on requirements and limits of use 

• Compile and report statistics as requested by OLP 

• Survey OLP Patrons as requested by OLP 

• Provide information and feedback to continually improve the OLP Program 

• Join and participate in the OLP email discussion list 

• If a library wishes to withdraw from the OLP Program it will give 60 days’ notice 

to OLP and other Participating Libraries. 

 

OLP Program Patrons agree to: 

• Obtain a Home Library card to present at other Participating Libraries as his/her 

passport to the OLP Program 

• Oregon residents who live outside a public library service area may purchase a 

card at a neighboring library (this becomes patron’s Home Library) as passport to 

other Participating Libraries 

• Comply with registration, circulation and other use policies determined by each 

Participating Library 

• Pick up and return all borrowed materials at the Participating Library 

• Be responsible for any fines and fees associated with his/her use of any 

Participating Library 

• Promptly notify Home Library and any OLP Program libraries of changes in 

address, phone, email, etc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



OLP Program Participating Library Agreement: 

Please mail or FAX signed agreement to OLP Program Participating Library Agreement 

Coordinator:   

Ed Gallagher, Director 

Albany Public Library 

2450 14
th

 Avenue SE 

Albany, OR 97322 

 541-917-7589 

 541-917-7586 FAX 

 

          

Participating Library Name 

 

             

Library Director Name     Signature 

 

 

       

Designated OLP Program Liaison 

 

          

Mailing Address 

 

       

Telephone Number 

 

       

FAX 

 

       

Email Address 

 

If applicable, list names of Participating Library branches or members included with this 

Agreement: 

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             



Page 1 of 3 

Oregon Library Passport Program 
More information  can be found at:  http://librariesoforegon.org/passport 

SAGE COMMENTS / DISCUSSION 
-------------------------------------------------------------------- 
QUESTION 1: 
 I love the simplicity of this idea, and I’d love to replace all the why and how questions with a simple 
“yes”!  That said, I don’t see how an individual library in Sage can agree to participate without ALL 
members agreeing.  Since the guest patron will be getting a card from whichever Sage library they visit, 
and all Sage member patrons may use any Sage library, a yes at one equals a yes for all.  Or did I miss 
something? 
 I am ready to sign on the dotted line, but feel a bit uncomfortable about doing so unless we 1. Get 
general buy in from all libraries or 2. Figure out the logistics of allowing a library to opt out, if desired. 
 What do you think? 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------- 
ANSWER 1: 
We already have precedent for a similar program. Hood River Count Library District belongs to a 
program called the Metropolitan Interlibrary eXchange (MIX). This agreement says that the residents of 
Clackamas, Hood River, Multnomah and Washington counties in Oregon and the Fort Vancouver 
Regional Library (FVRL) and City of Camas in Washington can receive cards at any of the other 
jurisdictions. In our case, patrons from White Salmon, across the river in Washington, actually account 
for anywhere between 5 and 15% of our circulation. MIX patrons have the full privileges of any other 
cardholder of HRCLD, including placing holds from throughout Sage, except that they may only use their 
card in-person at HRCLD locations. There is actually a note in every MIX patron record stating as such: 
"Metropolitan Interlibrary eXchange (MIX) patron. Card good in-person at Hood River County Library 
District only." 
 
The participating libraries recently renewed the MIX agreement. In renewal discussions, we actually 
marveled at how easy the program is for us and how few issues we have. At one point, we actually 
exchanged money for lost items. However, we found that this was more hassle than it was worth, as 
MIX patrons don't lose materials to any greater frequency than local patrons. Basically, the relationship 
is treated as one between the patron and the library from which s/he holds a card. If a Hood River 
patron has a Multnomah County Library card, s/he is responsible to MCL if those materials are lost. 
Similarly for a Multnomah County resident with a Hood River card. 
 
----------------------------------------------------------- 
QUESTION 2: 
If someone within the Sage System comes into my library I can tell as soon as I scan their card if there 
are any problems, such as… 
Ø       Expired card 
Ø       Card reported lost or stolen 
Ø       Outstanding fines 
Ø       Overdue materials 
Ø       Lost materials 
Ø       Invalid address or phone number 
Ø       Problem with a patron linked to this patron 
  



Page 2 of 3 

Oregon Library Passport Program 
When someone from Albany or Corvallis or some other non-Sage Library presents their card and 
requests one of mine under the Passport program, I will know none of those things.  How are we 
supposed to handle that? 
  
In Milton-Freewater we do not issue cards to first-time borrowers over the counter.  We mail the card to 
the address on the ID the applicant presents to us.  It’s mailed with “Do Not Forward” instructions on 
the envelope, so if it’s a bad address we get the card back.  If we do that for local residents I would plan 
to do it for Passport applicants as well.  This would reduce but not eliminate the potential problems 
listed above. 
 I like to think the Passport planners have a plan for dealing with deadbeat patrons hopping from library 
to library.  What is that plan? 
  
--------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
ANSWER 2: 
The Resource Sharing Committee approached this program with the idea that the patron is forming a 
relationship with the participating library; his/her relationship with their home library is immaterial. For 
instance, Hood River County Library District belongs to the Metropolitan Interlibrary eXchange (MIX). 
This agreement says that the residents of Clackamas, Hood River, Multnomah, and Washington counties 
in Oregon and the Fort Vancouver Regional Library (FVRL) and City of Camas in Washington can receive 
cards at any of the other jurisdictions. We cannot access the records of the other participating libraries. 
Thus, when a resident of White Salmon, WA, comes to use our library, we treat them as a new patron to 
our system regardless as to his/her status at the FVRL, or even whether they have a card at all at FVRL. 
 
OLPP is slightly different in that the patron needs to show a library card from a home library. However, 
beyond that, the relationship is between your library and the patron. As such, the patron is subject to 
whatever rules you would generally place on new patrons including ID requirements, waiting periods, 
etc. If your library's procedure is that you mail the person the card, then an OLPP patron would be 
responsible for the same requirement. In addition, participating libraries may choose to place further 
restrictions on OLPP patrons, such as lower item limits or no access to licensed electronic resources. 
 
Since the relationship is between you and the patron, you could also then bill the patron or charge fines 
for late, lost, or damaged materials the same as you would one of your own patrons . We have found in 
MIX, however, that loss rates between our own patrons and those from other jurisdictions do not differ 
significantly, if at all. 
 
I would also clarify that this program is voluntary on the participating library's part; you do not have to 
join. Your library's policies and procedures sound generally distrustful of your own patrons, to say 
nothing of another library's, so this program may not be right for you. However, by not joining, patrons 
within your service region would be ineligible for free cards at other participating libraries. 
 
The Resource Sharing Committee designed the program so that libraries, if they would like to 
participate, can do so at a level comfortable to them. Every library need not extend the same privileges 
to OLPP patrons. However, we see this as a tentative but exciting first step in promoting resource 
sharing among libraries statewide. 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

Oregon Library Passport Program 
--------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Possible BCLD OLPP cooperation requirements: 

1. To protect premium database access, card type & number string separate from regular BCLD 
cards 

2. OR photo ID required 
3. Verify patron’s account in good standing at home library 
4. 2-item limit (or 6?) 
5. One year expiration 



Job number: 31675 
AFTER RECORDING, RETURN TO: 
OREGON TRAIL ELECTRIC CO-OP  

PO Box 226  
Baker Ctiy, OR 97814 

 
RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT 

 
 
 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned Baker County Library 
District, (Grantors), 2300 Resort St, Baker City for a good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
whereof is hereby acknowledged, do hereby grant unto OREGON TRAIL ELECTRIC CONSUMERS 
COOPERATIVE, a cooperative corporation, and to its successors or assigns, the right to enter upon the lands of 
the undersigned, situated in the County of Baker, State of Oregon, and more particularly described as a strip of 
land 15 feet in width whose centerline is located on the center of the electrical line as actually constructed in the 
following approximate location: 
 
Commencing in the West quarter corner of Section 16 Township 9 South Range 40 East 
of the Willamette Meridian, thence South 44 Degrees East 272 feet more or less to 
the point of beginning, thence easterly 15 feet to the end point  
 
and to construct, operate and maintain an electric transmission and/or distribution line or system on or under the 
above-described lands and/or in, upon or under all streets, roads or highways abutting said lands; to inspect and 
make such repairs, changes, alterations, improvements, removals from, substitutions and additions to its facilities 
as Cooperative may from time to time deem advisable, including, by way of example and not by way of 
limitation, the right to increase or decrease the number of conduits, wires, cables, handholes, manholes, 
connection boxes, transformers and transformer enclosures; to cut, trim and control the growth by chemical 
means, machinery or otherwise of trees and shrubbery located within (amount) feet of the center line of said line or 
system, or that may interfere with or threaten to endanger the operation and maintenance of said line or system 
(including any control of the growth of other vegetation in the right-of-way which may incidentally and 
necessarily result from the means of control employed); to keep the easement clear of all buildings, structures or 
other obstructions; and to license, permit or otherwise agree to the joint use or occupancy of the lines, system or, 
if any of said system is placed underground, of the trench and related underground facilities, by any other person, 
association or corporation; and to reasonably access the above-described lands over Grantors’ adjacent lands.   
 
 The undersigned agree that all the Cooperative’s poles, wires and other facilities installed in, upon or 
under the above-described lands shall remain the property of the Cooperative, removable at the option of the 
Cooperative, upon termination of service to or on said lands.   
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantors have set their hands this   day of    , 20___. 
 
 
___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
 
STATE OF OREGON )          This box reserved for County Clerk recording data 
          ) ss. 
County of ____________ ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before 
me this _____________________________ day of 
________________________________, 20_____,  
by ______________________________________. 
 
Before me:________________________________ 
    Notary Public for Oregon 
    My commission expires: ____________ 
 

(Place official notary seal in the space below) 

 





Sage Library System
Memorandum of Understanding

Dated 3/2/04 
Approved 3/16/04 by Pioneer User Council
Revised 11/20/2012 by Sage User Council

This understanding is made as of the date of last signature by and between Eastern Oregon 
University (University) and (Member institutionLibrary) regarding (LibraryMember 
institution)’s membership in the Sage Library System (hereafter known as the "System"). The 
term of this aAgreement is from this date and will not terminate except upon written notice as 
per Sections 4.9 or 7.1. No amendment or modification to the Agreement shall be effective 
unless it is in writing and signed by two-thirds of the member institutionsparticipating libraries. 

 1. Intent
 1.1. The University will own the System, in accordance with its obligations as a member 

of the Oregon University System [OUS] group, except for peripheral devices housed 
in individual participating libraries.

 1.2. The University staff will maintain the System hardwareoperate the System.

 1.3. The University will provide automated services to each library authorized by 
participating libraries as agreed.

 1.4. The University will operate a turnkey integrated library system.
 1.5.
 1.6. Allocation of ongoing project costs is shared among participating librariesmember 

institutions as ratified by the Sage UserLibrary System Council (Council).

 1.7. Contents of this aAgreement comprise the general contract among the member 
institutionslibraries with specifics of implementation being reserved to the System 
Bylaws of the System.

 2. Establishment

 2.1. The Sage Library System is a consortium of publicly and privately funded 
institutions. The System provides services and sponsors activities that aid 
collaboration among member institutions.

 2.2. The functions of the Sage Library System include:

 a) To provide access to a union catalog of library materials owned by member 
institutions.

 b) To provide interlibrary loancirculation services that allow patrons to request 



materials from the collections of circulating member institutions.
 c) To enhance physical document delivery of library materials held by member 

institutions.
 d) To support cooperative collection development activities by member 

institutions.
 e) To sponsor workshops, conferences, and other opportunities for professional 

development.
 f) To support other activities at the discretion of the Sage Library System Council 

of library directors or designee.

 3. Governance

 3.1. The Sage Library System is governed by the Sage Library System Council, as 
specified by the System Bylaws. composed of the library director or library director 
designee from each of the circulating libraries with full membership, associate library 
representation selected from Level 1 libraries, associate library representation from 
Level 2 libraries, associate library representation selected from Level 3 and non-
circulation libraries, and one ex-officio voting member representing Umatilla County 
Special Library District. A System Manager and other staff as the council may 
designate, are non-voting members. The Council is responsible for making decisions 
and coordinating activities among users for implementation and operation of the 
System, and will refer appropriate issues, with accompanying recommendations to the 
University.

Each Council member will have one vote.

 3.2. The Council shall

 a) Develop and maintain bylaws governing System activities and services.
 b) Determine strategic priorities.
 c) Approve System budgets and expenditure plans.
 d) Set policies for the System and its relationship with member institutions.
 e) Establish committees, task forces, and advisory groups as needed.
 f) Recommend individuals for the position of System Manager and provide 

evaluation comments annually to the University.

 4. Member InstitutionsLibraries

 4.1. The basic unit of membership is the libraryinstitution. Each libraryinstitution is an 
independent member of the Sage Library System and is expected to participate in 
System services and meet membership obligations.

 4.2. Each member institution library shall provide, at its expense, all costs to link and 
ensure reliable network access from their organizationlibrary to the System union 
catalog.



 4.3. Peripheral     devices     and     hardware     are     owned     and     maintained     by     each     individual   
member.

 4.4. Member institutions libraries shall pay entry fees and annual membership fees 
established by the Council and calculated for individual member institutionss in 
respect to services rendered.

 4.5. Each member institution library shall contribute catalog records and participate in 
interlibrary circulation according to policies approved by the Council. Provision of 
the widest possible circulation services under these policies shall be a condition of 
membership.

 4.6. Each member institutionlibrary shall participate in physical document delivery 
services that support interlibrary loan servicescirculation.

 4.7. Each member institutionlibrary shall contribute to the management of the System by 
maintaining active participation in the Council and in additional groups and 
committees established to maintain the union catalog and interlibrary circulation 
systemloan services. Participation in other groups is encouraged but optional.

 4.8. The Council may unilaterally terminate membership only if the member 
institutionlibrary materially breaches its duties and such duties remain breached for 
90 days after written notification by the Council.

 4.9. Each member institution library maycan, at its discretion, withdraw from membership 
in the Sage Library System. Such withdrawal will be effective upon 360 days written 
notice. Notification of intent to withdraw must be received by the Council prior to the 
end of the calendar year. Withdrawal will become effective at the start of the next 
fiscal year.

 4.10. Each member institution library shall be responsible for verifying copyright and/or 
fair use status and/or obtaining copyright permission prior to its placing or 
introducing any information, text, graphics or data into the System database(s). 
Member institutions libraries agree they shall be solely responsible for any loss, 
liability or expense due to loading of copyrighted materials in the System databases 
by the employees or agents of the member library where such loading or subsequent 
use, viewing, printing, downloading or recopying is alleged to be infringing. To the 
extent allowed by Oregon law (ORS 30.260 through 30.300) and the Oregon 
Constitution, Article XI, Section 7, member librariesinstitutions agree to indemnify 
other member institutionss for the actions covered in this paragraph. For member 
libraries which are part of the Oregon University System, any indemnification of 
other System members shall be solely through allocation of loss experience as 
established by the Risk Management Division of the Department of Administrative 
Services.



 4.11. At its discretion, the Council may establish service agreements or other contractual 
means for extending selected services to non-member institutionslibraries.

 5. Data Rights and Obligations

 5.1. Data obtained by the University from each member institution library are hereby 
contributed in perpetuity to the State of Oregon for use in achievement of System 
goals, subject to any third-party rights or license restrictions attached to such data.

 5.2. Data obtained by each member institution library from the University are hereby 
contributed in perpetuity to the member institution library, subject to any third-party 
license restrictions attached to such data.

 5.3. If a member institution library ceases participation in the System, the data submitted 
to the University at that point shall be removed from the union catalog at the 
discretion of the Council. Database maintenance costs for removal of data shall be 
borne by the withdrawing member institution.

 6. Eastern Oregon University (University) Responsibilities
The University shall provide the Sage Library System with the following support services 
at cost to the System on terms agreed to by the University and the Council:

 6.1. Administrative support

 a) Serve as fiscal agent.
 b) Maintain budget and accounting activities on the University's financial 

information system.
 c) Serve as repository for documentation, correspondence, and other business 

records.
 d) Provide access to University price agreements and contracts for goods and 

services.

 6.2. Office space and services

 a) Provide suitable office space for System staff:
 b) Provide standard mail services and access to contracts for private delivery 

services.

 6.3. Human resources

 a) The System Manager of thestaff Sage Library System shall be recruited and 
evaluated by the University, with recommendations from the Council, according 
to policies and procedures of the University.

 b) Classification and terms of appointment for System staff shall be determined by 
the University, upon Council recommendation, in accordance with standard 



University policies and procedures.
 c) The Sage Library System Manager and staff shall be University employees, 

eligible for standard benefits available to University employees.
 d) Provide payroll services for System staff in accordance with their status as 

University employees.

 6.4. Technology

 a) Provide appropriate computer room space and reliable network capacity for 
System serverscomputer systems.

 b) Provide     office     computers     and     support     for     Sage     staff  
 c) Provide microcomputer and staff file server support for System staff.
 d) Provide telecommunications and network services (phone, fax, e-mail, data 

storage) for System staff.

 6.5. University may provide other services under terms agreed upon by the University and 
Sage Library System Council.

 7. To provide interlibrary circulation services that allow patrons to request from the 
collections of non-circulating members.

 8. Miscellaneous

 8.1. If sufficient funds are not provided in the budget of a member library to permit them, 
in the exercise of their reasonable administrative discretion, to continue this 
agreement or if a member library participating in this agreement is abolished, the 
member library may terminate this agreement without liability by giving other 
member libraries not less than 180 days prior notice.

 8.2. Except as otherwise limited by Oregon law or institutional policy, including Oregon 
Revised Statutes (ORS) 30.260 through 30.300, and the Oregon Constitution, Article 
XI, Section 7, each party shall be responsible for its tortious act or omissions and 
those of its officers or employees arising out of, or in any way connected with the 
performance or obligations of each party under this aAgreement. Nothing in this 
aAgreement shall be interpreted to create obligations for the State of Oregon, the 
State Board of Higher Education, the institutions of the Oregon University System, or 
participatingmember institutionslibraries beyond those expressly established by this 
aAgreement. Further, through the assumption of responsibilities, the University does 
not agree to enforce performance of any obligations assumed by other institutions of 
the Oregon University System or participatingmember institutionslibraries. Neither 
may other Oregon University System institutions be required to fulfill the obligations 
Eastern Oregon University has agreed to assume.

 8.3. This aAgreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. There are no 
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein 
regarding this aAgreement. No amendment, consent, or waiver of terms of this 



aAgreement shall bind either party unless in writing and signed by all parties. Any 
such amendment, consent, or waiver shall be effective only in the specific instance 
and for the specific purpose given. The parties, by the signature below of their 
authorized representatives, acknowledge having read and understood the aAgreement 
and to be bound by its terms and conditions. 

 8.4. This aAgreement will be reviewed on an annual basisannually by the representatives 
on the Sage Library System Council.

 9. Decisions and Disputes

 9.1. The resolution of any and all other disputes between all participatingmember 
institutionslibraries severally or a librarymember institution and the University arising 
out of the Agreement shall first be attempted by the Council and duly-appointed 
representatives of the member institutionlibrary and the University, who shall attempt 
to negotiate a solution.

 9.2. Any unresolved controversy between parties specific in 8.1. or any controversy 
between the University and the Council as a body respecting the interpretation or 
application of terms of this Agreement shall be submitted to arbitration, with each 
party selecting one arbitrator each and the two arbitrators so selected, appointing a 
third to form a panel. Evidence and arguments shall be submitted to the panel of three 
arbitrators in accordance with the then-existing rules of the American Arbitration 
Association, and the final decision of the majority of the panel shall be binding upon 
the parties and the award so rendered may be entered in any Court having jurisdiction 
thereof. Oregon Law shall apply in the interpretation, enforcement, and resolution of 
all disputes under this aAgreement.

 9.3. Any controversy between a single member institutionlibrary and the Council shall be 
resolved according to the Rules, Procedures and Bylaws of the Council.



Approval for the Sage MOU dated 11/20/2012

Member Institution

_______________________________________ ____________________
Library Director Date

_______________________________________ ____________________
Authorized Representative Date

Sage User Council

_______________________________________ ____________________
Chair Date

The State Of Oregon, Acting By and Through the State Board of higher 
Education, on Behalf of Eastern Oregon University

_______________________________________ ____________________
University Library Director Date

__________________________________  ____________________
Vice President of Business and Finance Date



Baker County Library District | Library Board Meeting  

 
Director Reports>Media Review 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Baker City 

Herald 

 

 

 















Baker County Library District | Library Board Meeting  

 
Director Reports>Media Review 
 

 

 

 

Hell’s Canyon 

Journal 

 

 

 









Baker County Library District | Library Board Meeting  

 
Director Reports>Media Review 
 

 

 

 

Record 

Courier 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
















